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VIA ECF
Hon. Allyne R. Ross
United States District Judge
United States District Court
225 Cadman Plaza East
Brooklyn, New York 11201
Re: USAI' A v. liS Airwavs. Inc., et aI., Docket No. LL-CIV -2579 (ARR)(SMG)
Dear Judge Ross:
This firm represents plaintiff
in the above-referenced action, and submits this letter
pursuant to your Honor's Individual Motion Practices and in response to defendants' letter of
June 27, 2011 requesting a pre-motion conference.

Defendants seck permission to move this Court for dismissal of plaintifls complaint
Civil Procedure Rules 12(b)(1) and 12(b)(6). As discussed

pursuant to the Federal Rules of

the complaint contains sul1cient factual matter,
"accepted as true, to 'state a claim to relicfthat is plausible on its face.'" Ashcroft v. IqbaL.
U.S. _, 129 S.Ct. 1937, 1949 (2009) (quoting Bell Atlantic Corp. v. Twomblv, 550 U.S. 544,
570, 127 S. Ct. 1955 (2007)). In addition and notwithstanding the suf1eiency of
the complaint,
below, this request should be denied in that

plaintiff intends to exercise its right to amend the complaint pursuant to Rule i 5 of the r ederal
Rules of Civil Procedure.

The complaint seeks declaratory and injunctive relief against defendants pursuant to,
inter alia, the Railway Labor Act ("RLA").
Counts I and II

Plaintiff alleges in Counts I and II that defendants violated the RLA by failing to
maintain the status quo during the parties' ongoing "major" dispute.

"'Major disputes' arc those involving the formation of collective bargaining agreements
("CBAs") or changes in the terms of existing agreements." Air Cargo. Inc. v. Local Union 8SJ~
InCl Brotherhood of Teamsters, 733 r.2d 241,245 (2d Cif. 1984); see also Elgin. Joliet and
Eastern Railwav Co. v. Burley, 325 U.S. 711,723, 65 S.Ct. 1281, 1289-90 (1945) (collective
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bargaining negotiations constitute a "major" dispute). The RLA provides for a long, drawn out
"major" disputes. Detroit & Toledo Shore Line R.R. v. United
process for the resolution of
Transp. Union ("Shore Line"), 396 L.S. 142, 148-51, 90 S.C!. 294, 298-99 (1969); 45 U.S.c. §§
152 (Seventh) and (Second); 45 U.S.c. § 155 (first). While this process is being exhausted, the
parties are obligated to maintain the status quo. Consolidated Rail Corp. v. Ry. Labor
Executives' Ass'n ("Conrail"), 491 U.S. at 302-303,109 S.C!. 2477, 2480; 45 U.se. § 156.
federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction to enjoin a party from making any unilateral
these procedures. Id., at 303, 109
alterations that would disturb the status quo for the duration of
S.C. 2477, 2480.

The parties havc been ncgotiating for a single integratcd collective bargaining agreement
governing all US Airways pilots since 2005, and arc thus engaged in a "major" dispute. As such,
the parties are obligated to maintain the status quo, which includes "those actual, objective
working conditions and practices, broadly conceived, which were in effect prior to the time the
pcnding dispute arose and which are involved in or rclate to that dispute" Shore Line, 396 U.S.
at 152-153,90 S.Ct. 294, 301.
The complaint allegcs that the actual objective working conditions and practices requircd
to be maintained by defendants include the usc of certain expedited dispute resolution practices
that have been mutually agreed upon and acquiesccd to by the parties (and with ALPA, thc
formcr certified bargaining representative for the LS Airways pilots). Defendants have
unilaterally abandoned these practices, which, the complaint alleges, constitutes a violation of
the status quo.
Thc complaint also alleges that defendants' unilateral abandonment of the expedited
dispute resolution practices constitutes a "major" dispute because it altcrs the parties' express
and implicd agreements as to the gricvance and arbitration process. See Conrail, 491 U.S. at

311, 109 S.Ct. 2477, 2485 ("collective-bargaining agreements may include implicd, as well as
express, terms").

the grievance and arbitration proccss
the
CBAs.
Plaintiff does not allege that
is not a "minor" dispute requiring interpretation of
the CBAs. To the contrary, plaintiff
defendants are not complying with specific provisions of
alleges that defendants' abandonment ofthe expedited dispute processes so alters the process as
the RLA's collective bargaining process), and
to abrogate those provisions (in circumvcntion of
158 v. Toledo Lakefront
is thus a "major" dispute. See Intl Longshoremen's Ass'n, Local
Dock Co., 1977 WL 1809 (S.D. OJ!, Dec. 16, 1977) (employer's unilateral refusal to enforce the
collective bargaining agreement's grievance and arbitration procedures constituted an abrogation
of said procedures and was a major dispute.). The complaints mere simple reference to the
CBAs does not transform the parties' disputc into a "minor" one. Sec Carmona v. Southwest
Contrary to defendants' assertion, their alteration of

Airlines Co., 536 F.3d 344, 349 (5th Cif. 2008).
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Counts 11 and iv

Plaintiff alleges in Counts II and iv violations of the duty imposed by Section 152
(First) of thc RLA to "exert every reasonable effort to make and maintain agreements concerning
ratcs of pay, rules, and working conditions, and to settle all disputes. . . arising out of the
application" of an existing collective bargaining agreemcnt. 45 U.S.c. § 152 (First). Count 11

alleges that defendants are violating Section 152 (First) by failing to bargain in good faith over a
single integrated collective bargaining agreement. Count iv alleges defendants are violating
Section 152 (first) by failing to "exert cvery reasonable effort. . . to scttle all disputes" arising
out of

the collcctive bargaining agreements. The duties imposed by Section 152 (First) are legal

obligations enforccable by the courts. Chicago & North Western Rv. Co. v. United Transp.
l)nion, 402 U.S. 570, 577, 91 S.c. 1731,1735 (1971).

has alleged suf1cient facts to support its claims in Counts 11 and iv that
defendants have violated their duty to bargain in good faith as requircd under Section 152 (First)
of the RLA. As to Count 11, plaintiff alleges facts which reasonably support the inference of
defendants' "desire or intent not to enter into an agreement at alL." American Airlines, Inc. v.
Air Line Pilots Ass'n, lnlJ, 169 F.Supp. 777, 794 (S.D.N.Y. 1958); see also Chicago & North
Western Ry. Co. v. United Transp. Union, 402 U.S. 570, 578, 91 S.C!. 173 i, 1736 (1971) ("'The
strictest compliance with the formal procedures of the Act is meaningless if one party gocs
through the motions with 'a desire not to rcach an agreement'" (internal citations omitted));
Ass'n ofrlight Attendants. AFL-CIO v. Horizon Air Industries, Inc., 976 f.2d 541 (9th Cif.
the airline
1992) (affrming the district court's finding, based on the cumulative evidence, that
breached its duty of good faith bargaining under 45 U.S.c. § 152 First); Railway Labor
Executives' Ass'n v. Boston and Maine Corp., 664 F.Supp. 605,615 (D.Me. 1987) C"Blad faith
must usually be inferred from circumstantial evidence" (internal citations omitted)).
Plaintiff

Plaintiff has similarly alleged facts sutleient to state a claim in Count iv that defendants'
unilateral alteration of the grievance and arbitration process also violates Scction 152 (First).
The complaint alleges suffcient facts to show that defendants' unilateral and unjustified
abandonment oflong established expedited dispute resolution practices evidences bad faith of
the RLA. See American Airlines v. Air Line Pilots Ass'n. Int'l,
the defendants in violation of
169 F.Supp at 798 (in denying motion to dismiss, finding that "the complaint in my view, poses
the Union").
the question ofwhethcr there was good faith compliance on the part of
Respectfully yours,

O'DWYER & BERJ\STIEN, LLP
Isl Gary Silverman
GARY SILVERMA"J (GS9287)

